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NAGPUR - SEONI EXPRESS WAY LIMITED
(CIN: U45203GJ2007PLC049963)

Phone: 079-26445810, Fax: 079-26400210, E-mail: investor@sadbhavinfra.co.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting of NAGPUR-SEONI
EXPRESS WAY LIMITED will be held on Monday, 16th day of September, 2019 at 12:30 p.m.
at “Sadbhav”, Nr. Havmor Restaurant, B/h Navrangpura Bus Stand, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad-380009 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended on 31st March 2019, together with the Report of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Shashin Patel (DIN:00048328) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

Date: 01/08/2019 By order of Board of Directors
Place: Ahmedabad

Registered Office:

Sadbhav House, Pooja Shah
Opp. Law Garden Police Chowki, Company Secretary
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006 Membership No. A56635

CIN: U45203GJ2007PLC049963

Notes:

1. AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS /
HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The
instrument appointing the Proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48
(Forty-Eight) hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the
aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company,
carrying voting rights. Provided that a Member holding more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person
as Proxy and such person shall not act as Proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies must be supported by an
appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

3. Members / Proxies should bring the enclosed Attendance Slip, duly filled in, for
attending the AGM.
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4. The Notice is being sent to all the Members, whose names appeared in the Register of
Members as on the close of business hours on 16th August, 2019.

5. The Notice of the Meeting is also displayed / posted on the website of holding
Company, i.e. www.sadbhavinfra.co.in

6. Aroute map giving direction to reach the venue of the 12t Annual General Meeting is
annexed to this Annual Report.

7. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Corporate
office of the company during on all working days between 12.00 Noon to 2.00 p.m.,
except Saturday, Sunday and holidays.

Details of Directors Seeking Re-Appointment at the Annual General Meeting

Name of Director Shashin V. Patel

DIN 00048328

Date of Birth 02-04-1981

Age 38 years

Date of Appointment Original appointment on 08-02-2007

Disclosure of relationship None

between Directors inter-se

Functional Expertise and 15 years of experience in making strategic management

Experience decisions. In field of Management Information System,
Project Bidding and Execution

Education Qualification(s) MBA

Board Position Held Managing Director

Remuneration Last Drawn (if Nil

any)

No. of Board Meeting Attended 2

during the year

Directorship in other Companies |1. Sadbhav Engineering Limited

2. Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited

3. Sadbhav Quarry Works Private Limited

4. Shreenathji-Udaipur Tollway Private Limited
5. Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited

6. Bhilwara-Rajsamand Tollway Private Limited
7. Sadbhav Nainital Highway Private Limited

8. Sadbhav Bhavnagar Highway Private Limited
9. Sadbhav Jodhpur Ring Road Private Limited
10. Sadbhav Una Highway Private Limited

11. Sadbhav Finstock Private Limited

12. Sadbhav Realty Private Limited

Chairman/Member of None
Committee in other Companies

No. of Equity Shares held in the 10 Shares (On behalf of Sadbhav Infrastructure Project
Company Limited
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors hereby present the 12th Annual Report of the Company together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The financial performance of the Company for the year under review along with previous

year’s figures are given hereunder:
(Rs. in Million)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from Operations 203.13 172.36
Other Income 10.84 7.89
Total Income 213.97 180.25
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (95.84) (118.68)
Tax Expense 109.09 -
Other comprehensive income 0 -
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 482.59 (118.68)
DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2019.
RESERVES

No amount is appropriated from Statement of Profit and Loss and transferred to any
Reserve Account.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 48,00,00,000. During the
year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor
has granted any stock options or sweat equity or bonus shares. The Company has no
scheme of provision of money for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees
for the benefit of employees. Hence, the details under Rule 16 (4) of Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 are not required to be disclosed.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The total revenue of your Company for the FY 2018-19 stood at Rs. 203.13 Million as
against Rs. 172.36 Million for the FY 2017-18. Total comprehensive income for the FY
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2018-19 was Rs. 482.59 Million as compared Rs. (118.68) Million for the FY 2017-18.
Your Directors are hopeful to get better results in the coming year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There are no material changes in the nature of business during the year.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate
and the date of the report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

No significant materials orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
would impact going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has formulated a risk management policy and has in place a mechanism to
inform the Board Members about risk assessment and minimization procedures and
periodical review to ensure that executive management controls risk by means of a
properly designed framework.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company has appropriate internal control systems for business processes with
regard to its operations, financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. It has documented policies and procedures covering financial and operating
functions and processes. These policies and procedures are updated from time to time
and compliance is monitored by the internal audit function as per the audit plan. The
Company continues its efforts to align all its processes and controls with best practices.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
i) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Shashin Patel
(DIN:00048328) Director of the Company, retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr. Rohan Anand
resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 28t March, 2019 and Ms. Pooja
Shah has been appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. 3rd May, 2019. Mr. Deep Patel
has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 24th May, 2019.

There were no changes in Key Managerial Personnel during the year.
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ii) Declaration by an Independent Director(s)

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet the
criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Act. In the opinion
of the Board, they fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the
Rules made there under and are independent of the management.

iii) Procedure for Nomination and Appointment of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing
competency requirements for the Board based on the industry and strategy of the
Company. Board composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the
Company, including its strategies, environment, operations, financial condition and
compliance requirements.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee conducts a gap analysis to refresh the
Board on a periodic basis, including each time a Director’s appointment or re-
appointment is required. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing and vetting
the CVs of potential candidates vis-a-vis the required competencies and meeting
potential candidates, prior to making recommendations of their nomination to the
Board. At the time of appointment, specific requirements for the position, including
expert knowledge expected, is communicated to the appointee.

iv) Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence
of a Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in
terms of provisions of Section 178 (3) of the Act.

Independence: In accordance with the above criteria, a Director will be considered
as an ‘Independent Director’ if he/she meets with the criteria for ‘Independent
Director’ as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

Qualifications: A transparent Board nomination process is in place that encourages
diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender. It is also
ensured that the Board has an appropriate blend of functional and industry expertise.
While recommending the appointment of a Director, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee considers the manner in which the function and domain
expertise of the individual will contribute to the overall skill domain mix of the Board.

Positive Attributes: In addition to the duties as prescribed under the Act, the
Directors on the Board of the Company are also expected to demonstrate high
standards of ethical behavior, strong interpersonal and communication skills and
soundness of judgment. Independent Directors are also expected to abide by the ‘Code
for Independent Directors’ as outlined in Schedule IV to the Act.



Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited
Annual Report - 2018-19

v) Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and Performance of its Committees
and of Directors

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, the Board has carried out
an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors as well as
the evaluation of the working of its Committees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria,
procedure and time schedule for the Performance Evaluation process for the Board,
its Committees and Directors.

The Board’s functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia
structure of the Board, including qualifications, experience and competency of
Directors, diversity in Board and process of appointment; Meetings of the Board,
including regularity and frequency, agenda, discussion and dissent, recording of
minutes and dissemination of information; functions of the Board, including strategy
and performance evaluation, corporate culture and values, governance and
compliance, evaluation of risks, grievance redressal for investors, stakeholder value
and responsibility, conflict of interest, review of Board evaluation and facilitating
Independent Directors to perform their role effectively; evaluation of management’s
performance and feedback, independence of management from the Board, access of
Board and management to each other, succession plan and professional development;
degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, establishment and delineation of
responsibilities to Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and
functioning and quality of relationship between the Board and management.

Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/
Committee Meetings and guidance/support to the management outside Board/
Committee Meetings, professional qualifications, prior experience, especially
experience relevant to the

Company, knowledge and competency, fulfillment of functions, ability to function as a
team, initiative, availability and attendance, commitment, integrity, independence
and guidance/ support to management outside Board/Committee Meetings.

Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included mandate and
composition; effectiveness of the Committee; structure of the Committee; regularity
and frequency of meetings, agenda, discussion and dissent, recording of minutes and
dissemination of information; independence of the Committee from the Board;
contribution to decisions of the Board; effectiveness of meetings and quality of
relationship of the Committee with the Board and management.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the
entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of
Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors, who also
reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee also reviewed the performance of the Board, its
Committees and of the Directors.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Concerns.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Since the Company does not have any Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associate Concerns,
no financial position of such concern(s) are required to be included in the financial
statement.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to a loan,
guarantee or security is not applicable to the Company as the Company is engaged in
providing infrastructural facilities which is exempted under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of investment made during the year under review are
disclosed in the financial statements.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from
the public falling under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Thus, as on 31st March, 2019, no deposits were
unpaid or unclaimed and due for repayment.

INSURANCE

All properties and insurable interests of the Company to the extent required have been
adequately insured.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were at
arm'’s length basis. A detailed report on material contracts and arrangements made
during the year 2018-19, being arm’s length transactions have been reported and
annexed hereto in Form AOC-2 as Annexure-1 and forms part of this report.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with
promoters, key managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have
potential conflict with interest of the Company at large.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is duly constituted in line
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee has been
re-constituted between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements
relate and the date of this report. The members of the Committee are Mr. Arun Patel
(Chairman), Mrs. Daksha Shah and Mr. Nitin Patel. The Committee meets as and when the



Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited
Annual Report - 2018-19

requirement of appointment or re-appointment of Directors occurs or for fixing the
remuneration of Director/Key Managerial Personnel.

One Committee Meeting was held on 6t August, 2018 during the year under review.

The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
all other employees of the Company is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of
leadership with trust. The Remuneration Policy of the Company is aligned to this
philosophy.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered following factors while
formulating Policy:

(i) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

(ii) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(iii) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all
other employees is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted in line with the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee has been re-constituted during
the financial year. The members of the Committee are Mr. Arun Patel (Chairman), Mrs.
Daksha Shah and Mr. Nitin Patel. Majority members of the Committee are Independent
Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is Independent Director. Mr. Rohan Anand acts
as the secretary to the Committee. All the recommendations made by the Audit
Committee were accepted by the Board.

The Committee meets at least once in a quarter. During the year under review, 4 (Four)
Committee Meetings were held on 5t May, 2018, 6th August, 2018, 34 November, 2018
and 5t February, 2019.

STAKEHOLDERS REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in compliance with
the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Listing
Regulations. The Committee has been re-constituted during the financial year. The
members of the Committee are Mrs. Daksha Shah (Chairperson), Mr. Arun Patel and Mr.
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Shashin Patel. Majority members of the Committee are Independent Directors. The
Chairman of the Committee is Independent Director.

The Committee meets at least once in a quarter. During the year under review, 5 (Five)
Committee Meetings were held on 5t May, 2018, 6th August, 2018, 1st October, 2018, 3rd
November, 2018 and 5t February, 2019.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least once in a quarter and the maximum time gap between any two
meetings is not more than four months. During the year under review, 6 (Six) Board
Meetings were held on 5t May, 2018, 16t June, 2018, 6th August, 2018, 15t October, 2018,
3rd November, 2018 and 5t February, 2019.

Attendance at Board meetings:

Name of Directors No. of Board No. of Board
Meetings held Meetings Attended

Mr. Shashin Patel

Mr. Nitin Patel

Mr. Arun Patel

| O O] O
| OOV N

Mrs. Daksha Shah

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: —

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures;

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the Company for that period;

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed the Company
and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule framed thereunder, every
company having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees
one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during any
financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board
consisting of three or more Directors, out of which at least one Director shall be an
Independent Director. Further, to the above, the Board of every Company shall ensure
that the Company spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net profits of
the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance
of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.

Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to your Company.

COMPLAINT REDRESSAL COMMITTEE FORMED UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. Company is a
subsidiary of Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited (SIPL) and part of Sadbhav Group.
Sadbhav Group as a whole including its subsidiary has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. The Policy aims to provide
protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual
harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of
providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure.

Pursuant to provision of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, Complaint Redressal Committee has been
constituted. The members of the Committee are as follows:

1  Mrs. Purvi Parikh Chairperson

2 Mrs. Janki Shah Presiding officer
3  Ms. Rutva Shah Member

4  Mr. Ashok Menon Member

5 Mr. Nitin Patel Member

6  Mr. Bhadresh K. Soneji Member

7  Mr. Stuti Kinariwala Member

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial
year 2018-19 and No meeting of Complaint Redressal Committee was held during the
year.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the
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mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
It is affirmed that Company has not received any Compliant under Whistle Blower
Mechanism.

AUDITORS

1.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, M/s. Gianender & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi (Firm Registration No. 004661N), be and is hereby
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of
11th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held in the year 2018 till the conclusion of the
16th AGM to be held in 2023, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Notification dated 7th May, 2018, has
dispensed with the requirement of ratification of Auditor’s appointment by the
shareholders, every year. Hence, approval of the Members for the ratification of
Auditor’s appointment is not being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

Cost Auditor

Pursuant to sub-rule (2) of rule 4 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Amendment Rules, 2014, every company specified in item (B) of rule 3 shall get its
cost records audited in accordance with these rules if the overall annual turnover of
the company from all its products and services during the immediately preceding
financial year is rupees one hundred crore or more and the aggregate turnover of the
individual product or products or service or services for which cost records are
required to be maintained under rule 3 is rupees thirty five crore or more.

In view of the above mentioned rules, the annual turnover of the Company was below
the threshold limit. Hence, the Company is not required to get its cost records
audited. Moreover, the Company is engaged into the business of infrastructure
projects and hence, the Company falls under Table (B) of rule 3 of Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. Ashish Shah & Associates,
Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2019. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as
Annexure-2.
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EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING
COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. There were no reservations or
adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. Secretarial Audit Report contains
remark regarding non appointment of CFO pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. In
respect to the same, Company has appointed Mr. Deep Patel as Chief Financial Officer of
the Company w.e.f. 24th May, 2019.

DEBT SECURITIES

Company has allotted 19,500 Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures under Series-A & Series-B. The said NCDs consisting of 16 ISINs got listed on
wholesome debt market at BSE Limited out of which 2 ISINs were redeemed during the
year. As on 31st March, 2019, following NCDs are listed on wholesome debt market at BSE
Limited.

Sr. | Script ISIN Description Face Value | No.of NCDs
Code (in Rs)
1 | 953254 | INE626]J07012 | Rated Listed Secured 87,400 10,000

Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series A issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

2 | 953267 | INE626J07087 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 400
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

3 | 953268 | INE626]J07095 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 400
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

4 | 953269 | INE626J07103 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 400
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

5 | 953270 | INE626J07111 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 400
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

6 | 953271 | INE626J07160 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 1300
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each
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7 | 953272 | INE626]J07152 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 1300
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

8 | 953273 | INE626]J07129 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 700
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

9 | 953274 | INE626]07145 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 1200
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

10 | 953275 | INE626]J07137 | Rated Listed Secured | 1,00,000 1200
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures Series B issued on
private placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

Redeemed debentures during the financial year

Sr | Script ISIN Description Face No. of Date of
Code Value NCDs Redemption
(in Rs)
1 | 953264 | INE626]J07061 | Rated Listed | 1,00,000 400 01/08/2018
Secured
Redeemable Non-
Convertible

Debentures Series B
issued on private
placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

2 | 953265 | INE626J07079 | Rated Listed | 1,00,000 400 01/02/2019
Secured
Redeemable Non-
Convertible

Debentures Series B
issued on private
placement basis of
Rs.1,00,000/- each

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The Company had entered into Debenture Trustee Agreement with VISTRA ITCL
(INDIA) LIMITED (Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Limited) for NCDs.
Contact details of the same are as below:

VISTRA ITCL (INDIA) LIMITED

(Formerly known as IL&FS Trust Company Limited)
IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot C-22

G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
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Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051
Tel: (91 22) 2659 3612; Fax: (91 22) 2653 3297
Email: itcl@ilfsindia.com; Website: www.itclindia.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirement of Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is applicable only to specified securities (i.e.
Equity Shares and/or Convertible securities). As the NCDs are listed on wholesome debt
market at BSE Limited, requirement of Corporate Governance is not applicable to the
Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return in Form
MGT-9 is attached as Annexure-3.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There was no earning and expenditure in foreign currency during the FY 2018-19.

Since the Company does not have any manufacturing activities, the other particulars
required to be provided in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to express their appreciation of the support and cooperation of
Government of Maharashtra, the Central Government, Bankers and Financial Institutions.
Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation to the employees of the
Company at all levels for their commitment and continued support for the Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Shashin V. Patel
Date: 24/05/2019 Managing Director
Place: Ahmedabad DIN: 00048328
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ANNEXURE -1

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Not Applicable, as there are no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into with related
party which are not at arm'’s length basis.

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board:
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188:

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sr. Name of the Nature of Nature of Duration of Salient terms | Date of Amount
Related Party | Relationship Transactions Contracts / of the approval paid /
Arrangements | contracts or by the received in
/Transactions | transactions Board advance
including
value, if any.
(Rs.In
Million)
1 | Sadbhav Holding Short term 2018-19 67.80 N.A NIL
Infrastructure Company | borrowings
Project received
Limited
2 | Sadbhav Holding Short term 2018-19 591.17 N.A NIL
Infrastructure Company | borrowings
Project repaid
Limited (Including
Interest paid)
3 | Sadbhav Holding Interest on 2018-19 105.98 N.A NIL
Infrastructure Company | Short term
Project borrowings

Limited
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Sadbhav Holding Operation and 2018-19 19.96 N.A. NIL
Infrastructure Company Maintenance

Project Services availed

Limited

Sadbhav Ultimate Rent, allocation 2018-19 1.06 N.A. NIL
Engineering Holding of expenses &

Limited Company | reimbursement

NOTE: All above transactions have been entered in the ordinary course of business and arm'’s length basis,
hence, approval of Board is not required under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For, Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited

Shashin V. Patel
Managing Director
DIN: 00048328




Annexure-2
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
p p
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
NAGPUR - SEONI EXPRESS WAY LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Nagpur - Seoni Express
Way Limited (herein after referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the company, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2019 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited (“the Company”) for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) Since shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchange and does not
intent to get its shares listed on the Stock Exchange the Regulations and
Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company. However, securities of the
Company are listed on the stock exchange and same is in compliance of The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;



(vi)  There are no laws which are specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following
1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
2. Provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. However, Company
has not appointed CFO and to that extent provision of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not complied.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously.
As per records available in the said minutes there were no dissenting views expressed by
any directors during the meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events / actions
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

Place: Ahmedabad For, Ashish Shah& Associates
Date: 24th May, 2019

Ashish Shah

Company Secretary in practice
FCS No. 5974
CPNo.: 4178

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A
and forms as an integral part of this report.



To,

Annexure-A

The Members,
Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Place:
Date:

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Ahmedabad For, Ashish Shah& Associates
24th May, 2019

Ashish Shah

Company Secretary in practice
FCS No. 5974
CPNo.: 4178
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ANNEXURE -3

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended 31st March, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

U45203GJ2007PLC049963

Registration Date

8th February, 2007

Name of the Company

Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Public Company / Limited by Shares

Address of Registered Office and Contact
Details

“Sadbhav House”, Opp. Law Garden Police
Chowki, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006
Tel: 079-26463384; Fax: 079-26400210
Email: investor@sadbhavinfra.co.in

Whether listed Company

No

Name, Address and Contact Details of
Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA), if any

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai - 400083

Tel: 022-49186000; Fax: 022-49186060
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall

be stated:
Name and description of main Products / Services NIC Code of % to total
the Product | turnover of
/ Service | the Company
To Undertake Four Lane from Km. 596/750 to Km. 653/225 42101 100%
on National Highway No. 7 (NH-7) in the state of Madhya
Pradesh under North-South Corridor (NHDP Phase-II) on
Build, Operate and Transfer (Annuity) basis
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. | Name and Address CIN Holding/ % of | Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary | shares section
/Associate | held
1 | Sadbhav L45202GJ2007PLC049808 Holding 100 2(46)
Infrastructure
Project Limited
“Sadbhav House”,
Opp. Law Garden
Police Chowki,
Ellisbridge,

Ahmedabad-380006
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY) AS ON
31ST MARCH, 2019

A. Category-wise Shareholding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year As on 31-March-2018

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
As on 31-March-2019

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physic
al

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during

the
year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF

60

60

0.00

60

60

0.00

b) Central
Government

c) State
Government(s)

d) Bodies Corporate

47999840

47999840

99.99

47999840

47999840

99.99

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sub-total(A)(1):-

47999840

47999900

99.99

47999900

47999900

99.99

(2) Foreign

(a) NRIs- Individuals

(b) Other-
Individuals

(c) Bodies Corporate

(d)Banks / FI

(e) Any Other

Sub-total(A)(2):-

Total Shareholding
of Promoter(A)=

(A)(1)+(A)(2)

47999840

60

47999900

99.99

47999900

47999900

99.99

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds/UTI

b) Banks / FI

c) Central
Government

d) State
Government(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls
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h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)
Foreign Portfolio
Investors

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

i) Indian

100

100

0.00

100

100

0.00

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

share capital upto
Rs. 2 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2 lakh

c)Others(specify)

Hindu Undivided
Family

NRI (Non Repat)

NRI (Repat)

Clearing Member

Sub-total (B)(2):-

100

100

0.00

100

100

0.00

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

47999940

60

48000000

100.00

48000000

48000000

100.00
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Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year %
year change
in
No. of % of % of Shares No. of % of total | % of Shares | shareh
Shares total Pledged / Shares Shares of Pledged / olding
Shares of | encumbere the encumbered | during
the d to total Company to total the
Company shares shares year
Sadbhav Infrastructure 47999640 99.99 99.00 47999640 99.99 99.00 -
Project Limited
Sadbhav Engineering Limited 200 0.00 0 200 0.00 0 -
Shashin Patel (held on behalf 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 -
of Sadbhav Infrastructure
Project Limited)
Nitin Patel (held on behalf of 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 -
Sadbhav Infrastructure
Project Limited)
Girish D. Patel (held on behalf 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 -
of Sadbhav Infrastructure
Project Limited)
Narendra Patel (held on 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 -
behalf of Sadbhav
Infrastructure Project
Limited)
Manoj K. Agola (held on 10 0.00 0 (10) 0.00 0 0.00
behalf of Sadbhav
Infrastructure Project
Limited)
Hemendra C. Shah( held on 10 0.00 0 10 0.00 0 -
behalf of Sadbhav
Infrastructure Project
Limited)
Niketan V. Patel( held on - - 0 10 0.00 0 -
behalf of Sadbhav
Infrastructure Project
Limited)
Total 47999900 99.99 99.00 47999900 99.99 99.00 -
C. Change in Promoters’ shareholding
For Each of Shareholding at the Date Reason Increase/Decrease Cumulative
the beginning of the year in shareholding Shareholding
Promoters during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total No. of % of
shares shares Shares shares Shares total
of the of the shares
Company Company of the
Company
Sadbhav 47999640 99.99 - - - - 47999640 99.99
Infrastructure
Project
Limited
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Sadbhav 200 0.00 - - - - 200 0.00
Engineering
Limited

Shashin Patel 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
(held on
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)

Nitin Patel 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
(held on
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)

Girish D. Patel 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
(held on
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)

Narendra 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
Patel (held on
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)

Manoj K. Agola 10 0.00 01-10- Transfer of Shares (10) 0.00 0 0.00
(held on 2018
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)

Hemendra 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
Shah( held on
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)

Niketan V. - - 01-10- Transfer of Shares 10 - 10 0.00
Patel( held on 2018
behalf of
Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project
Limited)
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D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs)
For Each of the Shareholding at the Date Reason Increase/Decrease in Cumulative
Top 10 beginning of the year shareholding Shareholding
Shareholders during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total No.of | % of total
shares shares Shares shares Shares shares
of the of the of the
Company Company Company
SREI 100 0.00 - - - - 100 0.00
Infrastructure
Finance
Limited
E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
For Each Directors Shareholding at the Date | Reason Increase/Decrease in Cumulative
and KMP beginning of the year shareholding Shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total No. of % of total
share shares Shares shares Shares shares
s of the Company of the Company of the
Company
Shashin Patel (held 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
on behalf of Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project Limited)
Nitin Patel (held on 10 0.00 - - - - 10 0.00
behalf of Sadbhav
Infrastructure
Project Limited)

Arun S. Patel

Daksha N. Shah

Rohan Anand up to
28.03.2019

V. INDEBTEDNESS - indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment

(Rs. In Million)

Secured Loans
excludin
deposits (N%n- Unsecured Deposits Total
Convertible Loans Indebtedness
Debentures)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
including
i) Principal Amount 1,750.00 828.68 0 2,578.68
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 261.58 0 261.58
iii) Interest accrued but not due 24.92 0 0 24.92
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,774.92 1,090.26 0 2,865.18
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 0 173.78 0 173.78
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* Reduction (146.00) (591.17) 0 (737.17)
Net Change (146.00) (417.39) 0 (563.39)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 1,604.00 663.03 0 2,267.03
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 9.85 0 9.85
iii) Interest accrued but not due 22.83 0 0 22.83
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,626.83 672.88 0 2,299.71

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
(Rs. In Million)

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Shashin Patel Total
Managing Director Amount

1 | Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income-tax - -

Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, - -

1961
2 | Stock Option - -
3 | Sweat Equity - -

4 | Commission
- as % of profit - -
- others, specify.... - -

5 | Others, please specify - -

Total (A) - -

Ceiling as per the Act -

B. Remuneration to other Directors
(i) Independent Directors

(" In Million)

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Arun S. Patel Mrs. Daksha Shah Total

(a) Fee for attending Board and - - -
Committee meetings

(b) Commission - - -

(c) Other, please specify - - -

Total (i) - - -
(ii) Other Non-Executive Directors (" In Million)
Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Nitin Patel Total

(a) Fee for attending Board and Committee meetings - -

(b) Commission - -

(c) Other, please specify - -

Total (ii) - -

Total (i) + (ii) -
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD /Manager/WTD

(Rs. In Million)

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Rohan Anand* | Total Amount
Company
Secretary
1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 0.15 0.15
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify....
Others, please specify
- Gratuity
Total (A) 0.15 0.15
* Mr. Rohan Anand has tendered resignation w.e.f. 28t March, 2019.
VIL.PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description Penalty / [RD / made,
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/ if any (give
Act Compounding COURT] Details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

For, Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited

Shashin Patel
Managing Director
DIN: 00048328




G’\\\ GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCQOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited

Report on the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited {“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the Statement of Profit and
Loss {including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Fiows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon,

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion theregn.

In connection with our audit of the ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules,2015, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controis, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materia] misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain prefessional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. ‘
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© Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

c)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable. '

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of changes in equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”,
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g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the
Company to its directors during the year so the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not
applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

. The company has disclosed pending litigations as mentioned in Note No.35 to the financial
statements which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company does not envisage any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contract requiring provision;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 004661N}

o

N

G.K. Agrawal
(Partner)
(M No. 081603)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 24, 2019
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Vi,

vil.

viii.

Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited
For the Year ended as on 31* March 2019

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date:-

The Company has no fixed assets as on 31.03.2019.

The Company is engaged in the business of BOT (Annuity) and hence the clauses 3 (i) (a), (b} & (c) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 relating to inventory are not applica ble.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liabilities
partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Hence, reporting under clause (a) to (c) of Para 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee and
securities, which attracts compliance to the provisions of the sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore the paragraph 3{iv} of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules
framed there under are not applicable to the Company.,

The Company is prima-facie maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a.) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of accounts, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employee state insurance, income tax, service tax, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities. As on 31st March
2019, there are no undisputed statutory dues payables for period exceeding for a period more than six
month from the date they become payable.

b.)According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not taken any borrowings from banks, financial institutions
or Government. The Company has outstanding debentures and has not defaulted in the repayment of
dues to debenture holders.
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Xi.

Xil.

Xiil.

Xiv.

Xv.

Xvi.

The Company does not have any term loan. The Company has not raised money by way of initial

public offer or further public offer during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management which have been relied
by us, there were no frauds on or by the company noticed or reported during the period under audit.

The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration; hence paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not

applicable to the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting

standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as covered under section 192 Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the

Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1534.

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants

{Firm’s Registration No. 0046
T

61N)

G.I.Agrawal
(Partner)
(M No. 081603)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 24, 2019
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nagpur Seoni
Expressway Limited {“the Company”} as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Intertial Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria estabtished by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inciuded obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial. controls system with reference to financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial contro! with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principies. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future perfods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls With
reference to financial statements issued by the Institute of Cha rtered Accountants of India.

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 004661N)

G.K.Agrawal
(Partner)
{M No. 081603)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 24, 2019
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Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
CIN :: U45203GJ2007PLC049963
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Note As at As at
Particulars No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR in Million) {INR !n Million)
ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
{a) Investment Property 5 4.82 4.82
{b} Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 1,567.74 1,800.44
(c) Other Non Current Asseis 7 14.24 11.52
Total Non-current assets 1,586.80 1,816.78
2 Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i} Investments 8 216.02 28.01
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalants 9 0.55 56.34
{iti} Other Current Financial Assets 5 447.16 383.96
(b} Other Current Assets 7 0.14 0.12
Total Curvent assets 663,87 468.43
Total Assets 2,250.67 2,285.21
EQUITY AND LIABELITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 480.00 480.00
Other Equity 11 {605.30} {1,087.88}
Total Equity (125.30) {607.88}
LIABILITIES
1 Non-¢urrent Liabilities
{a) Financiaf Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 1,447.83 1,603.12
Total Non-current liabilities 1,447.83 1,603.12
2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13 663.03 828.68
(i) Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues to micro and smakl enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues to other creditors 14 4,47 27.39
{iif) Other Financiaf Liabifities 15 188.15 432,48
(b} Other Current tiahilities 16 1.16 142
{c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 71.33 -
Total Current liabilities 928,14 1,289.97
Total Equeity and Liabilitles 2,250.67 2,285.21
Significant Accounting Policles 3

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner ]
Membership No.081603"

Date : May 24, 2019
Place; Ahmedabad

gw,@

For B On behalf of the Board of Directors 9}"‘
Nagpur Seont Express Way Ltd e

L7 //

Nitin Patal

Deep G. Patel
Chief Financial Officer

e

-

ashin Patel
Managing Director

DiN : 00043328
4

Company Secretary
M. No. A56635

Date: May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad




Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
CIN :: U45203GJ2007PLCO49563
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2019

INCOME
{ Revenue From Operations 18 45,12 35.60
I Other income 19 167.84 144.65
lit Total income {IHl) 213.97 180.25
EXPENSES
Operating Expense 20 2047 19.86
Employee Benefits Expenses 21 0.15 0.15
Finance Cost 22 255.00 264.88
Other Expenses 23 34.19 14.04
IV Total Expenses 309.81 298.93
Profit before exceptional item and tax {3-4) {95.84) {118.6B}
Exceptional items 24 687.52 -
V' Profit/(Loss} before tax (IH-1V) 591.68 (118.68)
Tax expenses
Current tax 109.09 -
VI Profit/{Loss) for the year [VI-V} 482.59 {118.68}
VIl Other Comprehensive Income - -
VIH Total Comprehensive Income for the period, net ot tax {V+Vi} 482.59 {118.68)
Earning per share [Nominal Value of share Rs. 10/-]
Basic and Diluted 26 10.05 (2.47)
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firmy-Re ggtration No. 08165

Partner \
Membership No.031663‘ 5

Date : May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of ¢~

Nagpur Seo{:\i]E\)iws Way Ltd
o
e
//“‘"’MM’

Shashin Patel
Managing Director
DIN : 00048328

Nitin Patel

Deap G. Patel
Chief Finanacial Officer

oja Shah
Company Secretary
M. No. A56635

Date : May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad




Nagpur $eoni Express Way Limited
CIN :: UA5203G)2007PLCO49563
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2019

{INR In Million)

Particulars

(A} Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Adjustments for:
Notional interest on NCD
Finance Costs
Excess provision written Back
Gain on sale of Units of Mutual fund Investments (net)
Cash generated befare Effect of Working capital
Adjustments for:
{increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets
{Increasa)/Decrease in current asset
{Decrease}/increase in trade payables
{Decrease)/Increase in Other financial liabifities
{Decrease)/Increase in current liability
(Decrease)/Increase in Provisions
Cash generated fram Operating Activity
{+)/(-) : Tax Paid{Net of Refund)
Net cash flow from operating activities

(B} Cash Flows from investing activities
Investment in Mutual Fund
Redemption of Mutual Fund
Excess provision written Back
Met cash from/ {used in) investing acthvities

{C} Cash Flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from Short Term Borrwings
Repayment of short term borrowings
Interest and other Finance cost paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the Period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the Period

March 31, 2019 tarch 31, 2018
591.68 {118.68}

0.22 0.23

254.78 264,64

{0.02) (317)

{10.82) (4.72)

835.84 138.31

169.47 211.60

(2.74} 0.17
{22.92) (50.63)

(0.02) 83.29

{0.26) {1.51)

71.33

1,050,72 381.23

{109.09) {3.84)

(4) 941.63 377.39
(901.79) {376.00)

724.59 360,31

.02 3.17

{8} (177.18) {12.53)
{146.00) (118.77}

68.74 20.96

(234,28} 110,70}

(508.60) (266.33)

() {820.24) (375.84)
[ A+B+C} {55.79) {10.98)
56.34 67.32

0.55 56.34

Notes:
{i) Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9}

Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts
Cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

INR In Million INR In Million
0.01 0.0t
0.54 56.33
0.55 56.34

{ii) Reconciliation of Financial liakilities

March 31, 201B Cash inflows Cash outflows

Interest Cost Non-cash adjustment
Transaction Cost

March 31, 2019

Long Term Borrowings 1,748.90 - - Q.22 1603,12
Short Term Borrowings B28.68 68.74 - - 663.03
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 261.58 95.38 - - 9.85
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 24.92 - 22.83 - 22.83

(i) The cash fiow statement has been prepared under indirect method as per Indian Accounting Standard -7 “Cash Flow Statement”.

(iv} Figures in brackets represent outflows.

As per our report of even date

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fir, ’R"é*gtsf;(ation No. 004661N

[

G.K. Ag%
Partner

Membership No. 081603

Date : May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

For & On behalf of the Board of Director

;’pf’

Nagpur Saoni Express Way Ltd

ol ()/f@

hashin Patel
Managing Director
CiN : 00048328

Lo
=

Campany Secretary
M. No. ABGE3S

Date : tviay 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

Nl n Patel
irector
DIN : 00466330

Le e/

Daep G. Patel
Chief Finanacial Officer




Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
CIN :: U45203GJ2007PLC0A9563

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2019

Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fufly paid

No of Shares.

Amount
{INR In Million)

At 31 March 2018 4,80,00,000 480.00
At 31 March 2019 4,80,00,000 480.00
Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
. Retained Debents{re Equity Component Total
Particulars R Redemption of Compound
Earning N .
Reserve Financial

[INR In Million) | {INR In Million) ; (INR in Mitlion) {INR In Million)
As at April 1, 2017 (1,087.49) - 118.29 {969.20)
Profit/{Loss) for the year {118.68) - - {118.68)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - - - 0.00
As at March 31, 2018 [1,206.17) - 118.25 {1,087.88)
As at April 1, 2018 {1,206.17) - 118.25 {1,087.88)
Profit/{Loss} for the period 482.59 - 482.59
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve (132.79) 132.79 -
As at March 21, 2018 {856.37) 132.79 118.29 [605.30)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Gianender 8 Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Date : May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nagpur Seoni Express Way Lid

) 9uAe
N i\ ,,,/Sﬁg:hi Patel

,a

Managing Director

DIN ; 00048328
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O
Pooja Shah

Company Secretary

(/“ itin Patel
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Deep G. Patel ™

Chief Finanacial Officer




[y

| Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited

- Motes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

1.

B

Company information:
Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited {"the Company") is a company domiciled in india and is incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. It is wholiy owned subsidiary of Sadbhav Infrastructure

Project Limited,

The Company was incorporated as a Speciat Purpose Vehicle {SPV) in February, 2007, to augment the existing
road from km 596.750 to km 653.225 (approximately 56.475 kms) in the state of Madhya Pradesh by Four-
Laning thereof on Built, Operate and Transfer ("BOT Annuity") basis. The Company has entered into Concession
Agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) in which NHAI grants to the Company exciusive
right, license and authority to construct, operate and maintain the project during the Consession Period of 20
years which includes Construction Period of 30 Months.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directers on May 24,
2019.

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statement:
{a) Compliance with IND AS:
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rudes,

2016 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The company has applied the applicable standards and/or amendments to existing standards
effective from April 1, 2018 in the preparation and presentation of financial statements for the year
ending or_mlIVIarch 31, 2018.

Most of the amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

{b}) Basis of Presentation:
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”). The
Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows”.

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is the functional currency and afl values are
rounded to the nearest million {INR 000,000}, except when otherwise indicated.

(c) Basis of Measurement:
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial

assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

{d) Use of estimates and judgements:
The preparation of these financial statements is in conformity with IND AS which requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions considered In the reported amounts of assets,
liahilities {inctuding contingent liahilitias), income and expenses. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results coutd differ due to these estimates and the differences hetween the actual results and the
estimates are recognised in the periods in which the resuits are known / materialize. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, it .

material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.




Nappur Seoni Expressway Limited
Hotes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

3. Summatry of significant accounting policies
The foliowing are the significant accounting policies applied by the company in preparing its financial

statements:

3.1 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet hased on current/non-current classification. An
assaetis current when it is:
=« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or censumed in the normat operating cycle;
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

= [t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

s |1 is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting pericd.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are classified as non-current assets and liahilities.

Operating cycle .
The Company’s has identified tweive months as its normal operating cycle.

3,2 Foreign Currencies

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of ihe

transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on translation
.of menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in
profit or loss with the exception of long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a fixed
assel are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.3 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognizes
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probabl‘e that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities, as

described below.
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a. Contract revenue {construction contracts)
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers ” with the date of initiai
application being April 1, 2018 Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with cusiomers, mandatory for reporting
period Leginning on or after Aprit 1, 2018 replaced existing revenue recognition requirements j.e Ind AS 18
Revenue Recognition and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. There were no significant adjustments required
to the retained earnings as on April 1, 2018.

Accordingly, the policy for revenue is amended as under:

The Company derives revende primarily from construction contracts. To recognize revenue, the Company
applies the following five step approach: (1} identify the contract with a customer, (2} identify the
performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligation in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when a performance obligation is
satisfied.

Al contract inception, the company assesses its promise to transfer services to a customer to identify
separate performance obligations.. The Company applies judgment to determine whether each service
promised to a customer are capable aof being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not,
the promised services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. For performance
obligations where control is transferred over time, revenue are recognized by measuring progress towards
completion of the performance obligation. The selaction of the method to measure progress towards
completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the services to be provided, The method for
recognizing revenues and cost depends on the nature of the services rendered.

b. Annuity income-
Revenue from annuity based projects is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over thie concession
period of the respective projects based on the implicit rate of return embedded in the prejected cash flows,
Such income is duly adjusted for any vartation in the amount and timing of the cash flows in the period in

which such variation occurs.

¢. Gain or loss on sale of Mutual Fund
Gain or Loss on sale of mutual fund is recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and is determined as the
difference between the sale price and carrying value of mutual fund and cther incidental expenses.

d. Dividend
incame from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby right to receive is
established.

a, Interest

Interest income is recognised using effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

f. OtherIncome
Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive arises,

1.4 Impairment — Non-financial assets
The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, the company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The

recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
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CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down Lo its recoverable

amount, The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discaunt rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available, 1f no such

transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts calcutation. These budgets and
forecasts calculations generally covering a period of the concession agreements using long terms growth rates

applied to future cash flows

(ntangihle assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the CGU
level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

Borrowing costs

Borrewing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, censtruction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective asset. Ail other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur. Borrowing cost consist of
interest and other costs that company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment income
earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on quatifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Investment Property

investment Property is measured initially at cost including related transaction costs.Such cost comprises the
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization ‘criteria are met.All day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are

incurred,

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or on permanently withdrawal from use or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangemont is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as lessee )

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss cn a straight-line basis over the lease term except the
case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is accounted in such case by actual

rent for the period.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument of another entity.




!

‘__Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited

Motes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

a)
i

iil.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directty attributahle to the
acquisition of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on
initial recognition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established hy regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or seli the asset.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Far purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
e  Financial assets at amortized cost
e  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTOCI)
o  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL]

Financial assets at amortized cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose abjective is to

o

fold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a

a

husiness mocel whose objective is achieved by both coltecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
fiows that are sotely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

a Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC! is classified as at FVTPL.

be-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is de-recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party undera
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Whea the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nar transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured al the
jower of the otiginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Company could be required o repay.

fmpairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss {ECL) model for the financial assets.

Expected credit losses are measured al an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.
The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to he recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss

in profit or loss,

financial Liahilities
i. Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans ancl horrowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Al financial liahilities are recognised initially at fair value. Al financial liabitities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loan and borrowings and payable, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement of financial Hahilities
The measurement of financiai liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon inittal

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in tnd-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCl. These
gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. Ali other changes in fair vaiue of such liahility are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

e loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the FIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as welt as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generaily applies to horrowings.

jii. Derecognition of financial liahilities
A financial liability {or a part of a financial Hability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when, and oniy
when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelied or

expired.

When an existing financial Iiability is replaced by another from the same Iencler on substantially different




.

Nagpur Seoni Expressway Limited

MNotes to Financiaﬂ staterent for the year ended March 31, 2018

treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liahility. The difference in

the respective carrying amaunts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

¢} Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the

Company currently has enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simuitaneously.

Fair Value Measurement
The company measures financial instrument such as tnvestment in Mutual Fund at fair value at each balance

sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahifity in an orderly
transaction between market patticipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

s 1In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or fiability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categarized
within the fair vaiue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liahilities
. Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
« Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company
determines whether transfers have occurred hetween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

The company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair vaiue measurement,

such as derivative instruments
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At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liabilily with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liahility and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as

explained above.

This note summarises accounting palicy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

s Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

» Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

» Financial instruments {including those carried at amortized cost)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax,

Current Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to

the taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or foss {either
in other comprehensive income or in equity}. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluales
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences
hetween the tax bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences excepts when the deferred tax
fiahility arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses
and carry forward of unused tax credits to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit will be available
against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can be utilized excepts when the deferred tax
asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

As per provision of income tax Act 1961, the Company is eligible for a tax holiday under section 80IA for a block
of 10 consecutive assessment years out of 20 years beginning of toll operation. The current year is ninth year of

wAs
)4

company’s operation and it propose io start claiming tax holiday in the subsequent years only. No deferre
<)
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the extent such gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred lax in
respect of timing difference which is reverse after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the
timing difference orginate. However, the company restricts recegnition of deferred tax assefs to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit wilt be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilized. For recognition of deferred tax, the timing difference which orginate first are considered to

reverse first.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no lonper probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assel to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assel to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceabie right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.

%.11 Provisions
General
Provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obfigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ohligation. The expense relating o a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contractual ohligation to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability

The Company has contractual obfigations to maintain the road to a specified level of serviceability or restore the
road to a specified condition before it is handed over to the grantor of the Concession Agreements. Such
obligations are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required Lo settle the ohligation
at the balance sheet date. The timing and amount of such cost are estimated and determined by estimated cash
flows, expected to be incurred in the year of overlay. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to such obligation. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of such obligation are
reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. |

3.12 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources witl be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent kability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does nol recognize a

contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

i HMEDABAD
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits

with a maturity of three maonths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and hank

overdrafts.

Larnings per share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders hy the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. '

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weightetd

average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
chares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

~ Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision maker.

A. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty ahout these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liahilities affected in future periods.

I Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, thal have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and fiahilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
paramelers available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
ahout future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
heyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assurmptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. '

L. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recoghised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the credits can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxahle profits together with future tax planning strategies.

v, Impalrment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
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disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the
budget generally covering a period of the concession agreements using long terms growth rates and do not
inciude restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investmeants that
wilt enhance the asset’s performance being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate
wsed for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inHows and the growth rate used for extrapolation

pUrposes.
B. Accounting Pronouncement Issued but not effective:

(i} ind AS 116 ''Leases"
On March 30,2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS116, Leases.Ind AS116 will replace the
existing leases Standard, Ind AS17 Leases, and related interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e,the
lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recoghize assets and liabilities for alt leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the undeslying

asset is of low value.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019 however the

effect on adoption will not have any impact on financial statement.

(i} Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits” (Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement)
The amendments dlarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the
current service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the
assumptions used for the re-measurement.
fn addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Company doas not expect this amendment to
have any significant impact on its financial statements.

(i) Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs"
The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for
its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that a Company borrows generally when
calculating the capitalization rate on general horrowings. The Company does not expect any impéct from this

amendment.
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S Investment Properties (INR In Million)
Particulars Land Totat

Cost

As at March 31, 2017 4.82 4,82
Addition - -
Dispeosal - -

As at March 31, 2018 4,82 4.82
Addition - -
Disposal - B

As at March 31, 2019 4.82 4.82

Net Book Amount

As at March 31, 2018 4.82 4.82

As at March 31, 2019 4.82 4.82

Mote:

1 There are no income arise from ahove investment properties. Further, the company has not incurred
any expenditure for above properties.

2 The above land has been mortgaged agianst Secured borrowings.

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or devefop investment properties or
for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

4 The fair value disclosure for investment property is not presented as the property specifically acquired
for offering as security for hotrrowings and hased on the information avaitable with the management
that there are no material development in the area where land is situated and accordingly, they believe
that there is no material difference in fair value and carrying value of property.
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Note:

Financial Assets

Non Current Financial Assets
Receivable under service concession arrangement
Fixed Deposit {VAT)
Total

Current Financial Assets

Receivable under service concession arrangement {Refer note 1 below)

Other Receivable from NHAI
Total

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Million) {INR In Million}

1,567.75 1,800.43

0.01 0.01

1567.76 1800.44

435.80 383.96
11.36 -

447.16 383.96

2014.92 218440

Annuity receivable from NHAI of Rs.435.80 Millions is the current portion i.e annuity receivable in the year 2019-

2020 or in the next 12 months.
Fair value disclosures for financial assets are given in Note No. 38

Current Assets

Mon Current Assets
Interest Accrued but not Due*
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision}
Less: Provision for Income Tax
Advance Income Tax {Net of Provision)
Total
Current Assets
Prepaid expenses
Total

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

[tNR In Million}) (INR In Million)
0.00 0.00
14.23 11.52
14.24 11.52
0.14 0.12
0.14 0.12

* Amount INR 3686 in current year & previous year is below the rounding off norm of the company

Investments

Ungquoted

Investments in mutual funds

L & T Ultra Short Term fund

Units in 2019: Nil {P.Y.=987841.971)

Union Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan-Growth Units in 2019:
1000000 (P.Y.= Nil)
L&T CASH FUND - GROWTH

2019; 144411.542 (P.¥.= Nil )

Units in
Totat

Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of Investment

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand
Balance with Bank

Total

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

{INR In Million) {INR In Million)
- 28.01
10.69 0.00
205.33 0.00
216,02 28.01
216.02 28.01

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

(INR In Million) {INR In Million)
0.01 0.01
0.54 56.33
0.55 56.34
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(a)

(b}

(d)
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Note

Equity Share Capital March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No. of INR No. of iNR
shares In Mitlion shares in Million

Authorized Share Capital

Equity Shares of INR 10 each 5,80,00,000 580.00 5,80,00,000 580.00
5,80,00,000 580.00 5,80,00,000 580.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 4,80,00,000 480.00 4,80,00,000 480.00
4,80,00,000 480.00 4,80,00,000 480.00

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporling pericd

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No, of INR No, of INR
shares in Million shares In Million
At the beginning of the year 4,80,00,000 480.00 4,80,00,000 480.00
Add: Issue during the year - - - -
Qutstanding a} the end of the year 4,80,00,000 480.00 4,80,00,000 480.00

Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares:
The Company has ane class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of INR 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per shase

held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of alt
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Share held by halding Company:
Out of issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital 47,599,500 shares {March 31, 2018: 47,999,900) are held by Sadbhav Infrastructure Project

Limited - Holding Compay, whie 100 shares {March 31, 2018: 100 shares) held by SRE) Infrastructure Finance Limited

Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than
5% Shares in the company

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Na. of % No. of %
shares Holding shares Holding

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited and its nominees 4,79,99,900 100% 4,79,59,900 100%

As per the records of the company, including its registers of shareholders/member and other declaration received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest,the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownesship of shares.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Other Equity
{INR In Million) (INR In Million)

11.1 Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument -
Sub Ordinate debts {refer note below & 24)

Balance as per last finzncial statement 118.25 118.25
Add: Additicn during the year - -
Add: Adjust during the year M -
Balance at the end of the year Total 118.29 118.29
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add : Transfer from surplus of statement of Profit & Loss {refer note 2 below}) 132.79 -
Balance at the end of the year Total 132,79 -
{Deficit} in statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statement {1,206.17} {1,087.49)
Add: Profit/{loss) for the year 482.59 {118.68)
Transfer {o Debenture Redemption Reserve {132.79) -
Balance at the end of the year Total {856.38) {1,206.17}
Total (605.30) {1,087.88)

The Project of the Company has been funded through sub ordinate debt of INR 118.29 Million from the Sponsors in accordance with Sponsar Support
and Equity Contribution Agreement / Sponsor Undertaking. Such sub ordinate dekbts is considered as sponsor's contribution to ensure Promators
commitment for the project. Sub-ordinate debt is interest free and shail be repayable at the end of the concession period or earlier at the eption of

the company.
The Company has issued redeemable non-convertible debentuses (refer note 12}. Accordingly, the Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules,

2014 (as amended}, require the company to create DRR out of profits of the compzny available for payment of dividend, DRR is required to be created
for an amount which is equal ta 25% of the value of debentures issued. Though the DRR is required to be created over the life of debentures, the
Company has upfront created DRR out of retained earnings. Further, the Company has created debenture redemption reserve to the extent surplus

available for the purpose of creation of debenture redemtion reserve.




Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
Nates to financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

12 MNon-Current Borrowings March 31, 201§ March 31, 2018
{INR in Million} {INR In Million)
Secured*
Non convertible debentures 1,603.12 1,748.90
Total 1603.12 174B.90
Less: Current maturities of non-gurrent borrowing*
Secured
Non convertible debentures 155.29 145.78
Total 155.29 145.78
1447.83 1603.12
* Includes the effect of transaction cost paid to Lenders on upfront basis.
Note:
{i) Security details:
The details of Security In respect of Non Convertible Debentures are as under:
a The Facility, and the payment and other obligations of the Borrower under the Finance Documents, Shali be secured by a first
b Charge on all the borrower's immovable and mavable property (both present and future) except Project Assets
[ An assignment by way of security over all the borrower’s right, title and interest in and to each transaction document.
d A share pledge, at ail times, over not more than 99% of the sponsors shareholding in the borrower.
2 The Security created under the Debentuse Trust Deed shall rank pari passu inter se, amongst the trustees.
{iii) Terms of Repayment of Debentures & Loans:
Series of Coupon Rate p.a. Terms of Earliest date of
NCDs No. of NCDs issuad % Repayment Redemption
Series A 10000 8.72% Partial Repayment 01-Aug-19
Series B 5500 8.91% Partial Repayment 01-Aug-1%

At the time of redemption of any Debentures on any Redemption Date, the company shall pay the relevant Debenture Holders the unpaid
Interest on such Debentures, accrued upto such Redemption Date.

13

14

15

16

17

Mon Convertible Debentures:

The redemption of debenture for SERIES A (8.72%) shall be made in 18 semi annually installments while for SERIES B {8.91%) shall be
made in 15 5emi annually installments on the first day of each half year i.e. 1st February and 1st August of the year ,commencing

from 1st August 2016,
Interest on such Debentures shall be paid along with the Redemption of Debentures on the same day i.e. 15t February and 15t August

of each vear.
Short Term Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand - Unsecured

Loan from Holding Company {Refer Note™}
Total

March 31, 2019
{INR in Million)

March 31, 2018
{INR In Million)

*Loan is repayable on demand / call notice from the lender and it carry interest of 10.00% per annum

Trade Payables

Trade Payables {Refer Note 27}
Total

Financial Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Interast accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Retention Money of Contractar
Others
Total

* Includes the effect of transaction cost paid to Lenders on upfront basis.
Current Liabilities

Statutory dues

Total

Current Tax Liabilites {Net)

Provision for income Tax (Net of Tds Receivable 18-19}

663.03 828.68
663.03 828.68
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Million} (INR In Million)
4,47 27.39
4.47 27.39

March 31, 2019

Mareh 31, 2018

(INR In Million)  {INR In Milfion}
155.29 145.78
22.83 - 2452
5.85 261.58
0.17 0.17
2.01 0.03
188.15 432.48

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

[INR In PAillion) {INR In Million}
116 1.42
1.16 1.42

March 31, 2019
{INR In Million)

March 31, 2018
{INR In Million)

71.33

71.33




Nagpur Seoni Exprass Way Limited
Notes to Financial Statemants for the year ended March 3%, 2019

18 Revenue From Operations March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Miltion}  (INR In Million)

Routine Road Manzgement Income 16.12 35.60

Tetal 46,12 35.69
19 Other income March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

{INR In Milllan]  (INR In Million}

Net Gain or Loss on financial assets measured at FVTPL

Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds { Net)

*Total Net gains (losses) on fair value changes include Rs 9.23 million (previous year Rs 4.22
millicn} as 'Net gain or toss on sale of investments'

Interest on Annuity Receivabies 157.01 136.76
Miscellaneous income

10.82 4.72

Excess Provision written Back .02 3.17
Total 167.84 144.65
20  Operating Expense March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Million}  {INR In Million}
Routine Road Maintenance Exp 19.96 15.20
Other Expenses 0.51 .66
20.47 19.86
21 Employee benefits expense March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
{INR In Million)  {INR tn Million}
Salaries, wages,bonus and other allowances 0.14 0.14
Contribution to provident fund and other fund 0.02 001
i 0.15 0.15
22 Finance Cost March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
{INR In Million})  (INR In Miilion)
Interest Expenses an Financlal liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest on NCD 14901 160.63
Short Term Borrowings 105.98 104.10
254.99 264.73
Other Borrowing costs
Bank Charges 0.01 0.00
Bank Guarantee Commission - 0.15
Cthers - 0.00
0.01 0.15
Total 255.00 264.88
23 Other Expenses March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Millian)  (INR In Million})
Rent 1.06 1.06
Rates & Taxes 0.07 0.02
Office Expenses 0.08 0.10
Insurance 0.75 0.78
Professional fees & Legal Fees {Director sitting fees added) 31.55 11.39
Auditors' remuneration 0.25 0.24
Miscellaneous expenses 0.42 0.45
Total 34.19 14.04
Auditors’' remuneration comprises following: March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Millian}  {INR In Million)
Statutory Audit fees 0.24 0.19
Certification Fees 0.00 0.01
Tax Audit fees 0.01 0.04
Total 0.25 0.24
24 Exceptional ltems March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
{INR tn Million}  (INR In Miilion)
Contract Revenue {Arbitration Award Income) 140.64 -
Interest on delayed payment of Annuity 239.81 -
Other Income 7.07 -
Total 687.52 -
Note: As at 05th October, 2018, the Company received the award from the Arbitral Tribunal in which the semi annuity amount was

increased from INR 191.98 million to INR 217.9G million from the initial date of annuity. Accordigly, the Company has received INR
440.64 millior: towards differential amount of annuity along with interest of INR 239.81 miliien an 29th January, 2012 from NHAL
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Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Earning Per Share {EPS):
(INR In Million)  [INR in Million)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Net {Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders: 482.56 {118.68)
Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year 4,80,00,000 4,80,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 4,80,00,000 4,80,00,000
Nominai value of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Baslc and Dilluted earnings/(loss) per share 10.05 {2.47)
Related Party Disclosures:
Related party disclosures as required under the Indian Accounting Standard — 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” are given below:
Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :
Description of Relationship Name of the Related Party
Ultirmate Helding Company Sadbhav Engineering Limited (SEL}
Holding Company Sadbhav infrastructure Project Ltd (SIPL)
Key Managerial Personnel Mr, Arun 5. Patel, Independent Director

Mrs. Daksha N. Shah, Independent Director

Mr. Anand Rohan, Company Secretary {upto 28.03.201%)

Ms. Pogja Shah, Company Secretary {w.e.f 03.05,2019)
Transactions with Related Parties during the Year: March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

{iNR In Millian)  [INR In Million)

Shart Term Borrowings received

SiPL 67.80 10.26
Short Term Borrowings repaid (including Interest paid)

SiPL 591.17 2061
Interest on Short Term 8errowings

SIPL 105.98 104.10
Operation and Maintenance Services Avaifed

SIPL 18.96 19.20
Rent, Alfocation of Expenses & Reimbursement

SEL 1.06 1.06
Director Sitting Fees

Mrs. Daksha N. Shah 0.04 0.04
Mr. Arun $, Patel 0.04 0.09
Remuneration

Mr. Anand Rohan 0.15 0.11
Balances outstanding as at March 31, 2019 : March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

{INR In Milfion]  {INR In Million}

Other Equity (Sub-ordinate debts )

SIPL 118.29 118.29
Shart Term Borrowings outstanding in¢fuding interest payable

SIPL 672.88 1090.26
Payable towards Operation & Manitenance & Project Management Services

SIPL - 4.91
Trade Payables and other current liabilities {unsecured)

SEL 2.72 1.75

SiPL - 18.52

Remuneration Payable

Mr, Anand Rehan 0.01 0.01

Terms and conditions of the bafance outstanding:
1. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arin’s length trapsactions. Gutstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free excepis short term loan and settlement accurs in cash as per the terms of the

agreement,
2. The Company has not provided any commitment ta the related party as at March 31, 2019 {March 31, 2018: Rs.Nil)

Segment Reporting

The operating segment of the company is identified to be "BOT {Annuity Basis)", as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) reviews
business performance at an overall company fevel as one segment and hence, does not have any additional disclosures to be made
under Ind AS 108 Operating Segments. Further, the Company also primarily operates under one geographical segment narnely Ingia.




29

30

31

32

Note:
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Operating Lease:
Office premise of the Company have heen taken on operating lease basis. The lease rent paid during the year Rs. 1.06 million {March 31,

2018: Rs. 1.06 miition). These operating lease agreement are cancellable by giving short period notice by either of the parties to the

agreement.

There are nc Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days at
the balance sheet date. This is based on the information available with the Company.

The Company does not have any transaction to which the provision of IND AS-2 relating to Valuation of Inventories applies.

Distlosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 - "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"
Amount of contract revenue recognised in the year : Rs. 46.12 million (Previous year- Rs.35.60 million}
Method used to recognise the constructions reveaue - Work excuted during the year and remaining to be executed

" March 31, 2019

Changes in amount of Contract Assets:
{INR in Million}

Opening Bafance 2184.3%
Less: Annuity Received for Construction and Operations and Maintenance (383.96)
Add: Notional Finance income on Annuity Receivable 157.01
Cperation and Maintanace Contract Revenue 46.12

2003.55

Closing Balance

Notional Finance Income on Annuity Receivable is recogrised during the year using affective interest rate method where the effective
interest rate is taken as 9.77% per annum.

Employee benefits
The Company has one employee, the Company Secretary, on its payroll dusing the period and therefore, there is no reportable
information under d AS-19. Please refer note 27 for information related to remuneration paid to hirm.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 22 “Barrowing Costs"
Borrowing cost capitaiised during the year INR Nil. {previous year ; INR Nil).

Capital Commitment and Contigent Liabilities
The Company does not have any capital commitment and contigent liabilities a5 on 31.3,2019. There are no litigation pending against

the campany which could be materially impact its financial position as at the end of the year.




Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
Notes ta Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

36 Disclosure of Financial Instruments by Category
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{INR In Million)
Financial instruments by Note March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
categaries no. FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortized cost FYTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost
Financial asset
Security Deposits 6 - - 0.01 - - 0.01
Investment in Mutual Fund 8 216.02 - - 28.01 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 9 - 0.55 - - 56,34
Other Financial Assets & - - 2,014.52 - - 2,184.40
Total Financial Asset 216.02 - 2,015.47 28.01 - 2,240,749
Financial fiability
Non Current Barrowings 12 - - 1,447.83 - - 1,603.12
Loans Repayable on Demand i3 - - 663.03 - - §28.68
Trade Payables 14 - - 4.47 - - 27.3%
Other Financial Liabiiities 15 - - 188.15 - - 432.48
Total Financial Liabilitias - - 2,303.48 - - 2,891.67

Default and breaches
There are no defaults with respect to payment of principal interest, sinking fund or redemption terms and no breaches of

the terms and conditions of the loan,
There are no breaches during the year which permitted fender to demand accelerated payment.

Fair value disclosures for financial assets
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

{INR In Mifiion)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particular . . Carrying R
Carrying amount  Fair value Fair value
amount
Financtial Assets

Investment in Mutual Fund Level-1 216.02 216.02 28,01 28.01
Security Deposits Level-3 .01 0.01 Q.01 0.01
Cash and Cash Equivalent Level-3 0.55 0.55 56.34 56.34
Other Finanacial Assets Levei-3 2,014.92  2,014.92 2,184.40 2,184,140
Total Financial Assets 2,231.49  2,231.49 2,268.74 2,268.74

Notes:
a. The management assessed that the fair values of Investment in mutual fund, cash and cash equivalents, other financial

assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments.
b. The carring value of Company's interest-bearing borrowings are reasonable approximations of fair values as the

borrowing carry floating interest rate.
¢. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation safe.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
a) Investments in units of Mutual Funds which are not traded in active market is determined using closing NAY.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities:
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

{INR In Million)

Fair value measurement using

N
ate Significant observable inputs (Level 1}

No, March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Assets measured at fair value

Fair value through profit & loss

Investment in Mutual 8 216.02 28.01
There have been no transfers between leve! 1 and level 2 during the years.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

a0

{a

(b}

fe}

{d)

(e)

Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies
The Cempany's principal financiai {iabifities comprise borrowings and trade & other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities
is to finance the Campany’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include Investments,othar

receivables and cash and bank balance that derive directly from its operations.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framewark. Risk
management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors
oversee compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk management framework,

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instrumenits affected by market risk
include borrowings, investments, other receivables, trade and other payables.

Within the various methodclogies to analyse and manage risk, Company has implemented a system based on “sensitivity analysis” on
symmetric basis. This tool enabies the risk managers to identify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate
quantification of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were to he met under a specific set of assumptions. The risk
estimates provided here assume:

- a parallel shift of 25-basis points of the interest rate yield curves in all currencies
- a simultaneous, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in which the INR appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

The potential econamic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects
estimated changes resulting from the sensitivity analysis. Actual results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ
materially from these estimates due to actual developments in the giobal financial markats.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and provisions.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates.

The Interest risk arises to the company mainly from Long term borrowings with variable rates. The Company maintains its borrowings at
fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve this when necessary. The company manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-

to-fixed interest rate swaps. The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.
The banks are now finance at variable rate only, which is the inherent business risk.

Interest rate sensitivity
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because its borrowings in Non convertible debenture carries fixed interest rate,

Cradit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty wiil not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading te a

financial foss. The Company is not exposed to credit risk from its cperating activities as the company is under Service concession
arrangement with National Highway Authority of India and the Annuity amount of the project is fixed and receivable from government semi
annually. However, The Company is exposed to credit risk related to financing activities, including temporary Investment in mutual fund.

Temporary investment in Mutual Fund
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s finance department in accordance with the

Company’s pelicy. Investments of surplus funds are made only in accordance with company policy. The Company monitors the ratings,
credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties. Based ¢n its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Comapny adjusts its
exposure to various counterparties. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance sheet as of March

31, 2019 is Rs. 216.02 milfion and March 31, 2018 is Rs.28.01 miilion.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral
requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys cash management system, It maintains adequate sources of

financing including debt at an optimised cost.
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{f)

11

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financiat lizbilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

{Rs. In Million)

Total upto

Particulars Amount On Demand 1year 1-2 years 2 -5 years > § years
As at March 31, 2019
Long term borrowings# 1,604.00 - 155.50 181.50 551.00 716.00
Short term borrowings 663.03 563.03 - - - -
Trade Payables 4,47 - 4.47 - - -
Other Financial LiabilitiesH# 32.86 - 32.86 - - -
Total 2,304.36 663,03 192.83 181.50 551,00 716,00
As at March 31, 2018
Long term horrowingsh 1,750.00 - 146.00 155.50 528.50 920.00
Short term borrowings 828.68 828.68 - - - -
Trade Payables 27.39 - 27.39 - - -
{Other Financiai Liabilities# 286.70 - 286.70 - - -
Total 2,892.76 828.68 460.09 155.50 528.50 920.60

# Current maturity of fong term borrowings is included in long term borrawing part in above note from cther financial liabilities.

Collateral
The Company's all financial assets has been pledged against Non-current borrowings in order to fulfill the collateral requirement of the

Lenders. The fair value of such financial asets disclosed in the note 38,

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, Capital consist of share capital, Other equity in form of Subordinate Debt and all
other reserves atiributable to the equity holders of the Company,

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management Is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capitai structure and healthy capital
ratics in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital siructure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its business
requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
sharehaolders, issue new shares or obtained additicnal sub-ordinate debts. The Company manitors capital using debit equity ratio which
does not exceed 4:1, which is total leng term borrowings divided by total equity excluding balance of deficit in statement of profit & loss.

The key performance ratios as at 31 March are as follows

March 31, 2019 March 32, 2018
{Rs.In Million)  {Rs. In Million}

Long term Borrowings {refer note 12} 1,604.00 1,750.00
Total Debts - A 1,604.00 1,750.00

N
Equity Share Capital {refer note 10} 480.00 480.00
Equity Compcnent of Compound Financial Instruments {refer note 11.1) 118.29 118.29
Total Equity - B 598.29 598.29

Debt equity ratio {A/B} 2.68 2.93




Nagpur Seoni Express Way Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

42 Disclosure pursuant to Appendinx - E of IND AS 115 " Revenue from Contracts with Customer

A Description and classification of the arrangment
The Company has entered into Service Concession Agreement {'SCA'} with Nationa! Highway Authority of India {NHAI) dated May
30, 2007 for the purpose of widening of two lane portion from 596.750 kms to 653.225 Kms covaring 56.475 Kms an NH-7 in the
state of Madhya Pradesh to 4 lanes through a Concession under North-South Corridor on Buiid Cperate and Transfer onh BOT
Annuity basis. The Concession Period is of 20 years including construction period of 30 Months. The Company obtained complation

cartificate on 25th May 2010 from the NHAI,

B Significant Terms of the arrangements

{iy Annuity Payment:
The company is, performing and discharging its obligations in accordance with the terms and conditions and covenants set forth in
SCA, eligible for the receipt of fixed amount of annuity on each annuity payment date.
Annity payment date means each period for which the annuity is payable under the tarms of the SCA and as described under
schedule G of the SCA. The annuity payments dates fal! in months of May and November of every yaar,

{if} Bonus or reduction in annuity:
In terms of the SCA the company shall receive bonus for early completion of the project or incur reduction in annuity for delay

completion of the project.
The project has been timely completed by the company i.e. May 25, 2010, There is no any impact of bonus and reduction in annuity

except the proportionate reduction in annuity amount due to reduction in the overall lengh of the project road.

{iii) Levy and collection of fee from the users:
In terms of the SCA, NHAI shall have the authority to levy toll or fee on the vehicles using the project facilities and to demand,

collect, retain and appropriate the fee in accordance with the applicable faws.

{iv] Details of Termination
SCA can be terminated on account of default of the company or NHAZ in the circumstances as specified under article 30 of the SCA.

€ There has been no change in the concession arrangement during the year.

43 The company has accumulated losses of INR 856.37 Million {March 31, 2018: INR 1205.17 Miltion) as at the March 31, 2019, which
have resulted in erosion of the company's net worth, although Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited, the holding company,
Sponsors of the Company's project, has invested INR 118,29 Million as sub ordinate debt which is part of the Project Equity Capitat
as per terms of the Rupee Facility Agreement (Loan Agreement). The Company has been able to meet its obligations in the ordinary
course of the business complimented by the continuing financia! support offered from Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited (the
Holding Coempany), The Sponsors viz., Sadbhav infrastructure Project Limited and Sadbhav Engineering Limited have also entered
into undertaking to support the Company for cost overrun and shortfall in cash flow. Despite Negative net-worth, the management
is confident of continuity of business and views the entity as going concern. Further the company has received an arbirtral award
from NHAI in which the Annuity amount has been increased from 191.98 million to 217.50 million.

44 Previous year figures:
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to facilitate comparability with current year's

classification.

As per our report of even date

For Glanender & Associates For & On behalf of the Board of Direct;/r,s of

Chartered Accountants Nagpur Seoni Express Way Ltd ;

EAIT:F"@)REBrstratlon No. }}94'5?“ O«%J é
— gu s

- Shashm Patel
Managing Director
DIN : 00048328

”bﬂl?
= s
Shah Deep G. Patel

o - Company Secretary  Chief Finanacial Officer
M. No. AS6635

Date : May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

Date : May 24, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad
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Reg. Off: Sadbhav House, Opp. Law Garden Police Chowki, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad- 380 006

ATTENDANCE SLIP

DP ID

Folio No.

Client ID

No. of Shares

Name and address of Shareholder / Proxy holder

[ hereby record my presence at the 12t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Monday, 16th day of September, 2019 at 12:30 p.m. at “Sadbhav”, Nr. Havmor Restaurant,
B/h Navrangpura Bus Stand, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009.

Shareholder / Proxy’s Signature

(Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the
attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)
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Form No. MGT-11
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

PROXY FORM

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID
Folio No./ Client ID |DPID |
[/We, being the member(s) of shares of the Nagpur - Seoni Express Way
Limited, hereby appoint;
1. NAMeE @ e
AdAress:
E-mail ID: o Signature: or failing
him
2. Name @
AdAress:
E-mail ID: o Signature: or failing
him
3. Name @
AdAress: o e
E-mail ID: ..o e Signature:

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll)
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 12t Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be
held on Monday, 16th day of September, 2019 at 12:30 p.m. at “Sadbhav”, Nr. Havmor
Restaurant, B/h Navrangpura Bus Stand, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009 Gujarat and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:
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ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March,
2019, together with the Report of Directors and Auditors thereon. (Ordinary Resolution)

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Shashin Patel (DIN:00048328) who retires by rotation. (Ordinary

Resolution)
Affix
Re.1/-
Signed this ......... day of .cccveeveiiiier e , 2019 Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of 1st Proxy holder Signature of 2nd Proxy holder Signature of 3rd Proxy holder

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if
he so wishes.



Nagpur - Seoni Express Way Limited
Annual Report - 2018-19
CIN: U45203GJ2007PLC049963

A ROUTE MAP GIVING DIRECTIONS TO REACH THE VENUE OF
THE 12™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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